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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

EASTERN DIVISION
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ‘ : NO: 07 CR 683
V. : DEFERRED PROSECUTION
AGREEMENT
BP AMERICA INC,,
Defendant.

Defendant BP AMERICA INC. (“BP America” or the “Company”), a corporation
established and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, by its undersigned attorneys,
pursuant to authority granted by its Board of Directors, and the United S£ates Department of
Justice, Criminal Division, Fraud Section (the “Department of Justice” or the “Department”)
enter into this Deferred Prosecution Agreement (“Agreement”) which shall apply to BP America
and the following BP America subsidiaries: BP Corporation North America Inc., BP Products
North America Inc., BP America Production Company, BP Energy Company, and BP
International Services Company (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “BP Entities”). The
terms and conditions of this Agreement are as follows:

Criminal Information and Acceptance of Responsibility

I.F - The United States will file a criminal Information that will be made public in the
United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois charging BP America with
conspiring to commit offenses against the United States, that is, to violate the Commodity
Exchange Act (“CEA”), 7 U.S.C. § 13(a)(2), 18 U.S.C. § 1341 (mail fraud), and 18 U.S.C. § 1343
(wire fraud), all in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371. In so doing, BP America knowingly waives its

right to be charged by indictment on this charge, as well as all rights to a speedy trial pursuant to

1
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the Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution, Title 18, United States Code, Section

01, Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 48(b), and all related applicable Local Rules of the

[FS]
ek

m District of Illinois for the period during which this

@]

United States District Court for the North
Agreement is in effect.

2. BP America hereby warrants and represents that the Board of Directors of BP
America has duly authorized, in a specific resolution that is attached hereto, the execution and
delivery of this Agreement by BP America, and that the person executing this Agreement has the
authority to bind BP America.

3. BP America admits, accepts and acknowledges responsibility for the acts of its
current and former officers and employees of the BP Entities as set forth in the Statement of Facts
attached hereto as “Attachment A.” BP America further agrees the factual statements set forth in
the Statement of Facts are accurate. Should the Department initiate the prosecution that is
deferred by this Agreement, BP America agrees that it will neither contest the admissibility of,

nor contradict, in any such proceeding, the Statement of Facts.

Cooperation

4. During the three (3) year term of this Agreement (and any extension thereof), BP

America and the BP Entities agree to cooperate fully with the Department, the Commodity

Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC”), any “registered entity” as that phrase is defined in 7
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(29), or any “self-regulatory organization,” as that term is defined in 17 C.
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US.C.
- 1.3(ee), as directed by the Department or the CFTC, and an independent monitor (described in
“Attachment B”), whenever any such entity, agency, or monitor investigates whether BP

America, the BP Entities, or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents or consultants may

[
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have: (1) engaged in any potential act of manipulation, attempted manipulation, cornering, or
attempted comering relating to the price of a “commodity,” as commodity is defined in Section
I(a) of the CEA, in interstate commerce, or for future delivery; (2) knowingly delivered or caused
to be delivered any false, misleading, or knowingly inaccurate information that could tend o

affect the price of a commodity in interstate commerce; and/or (3) made any false or mi sleading

America agrees that its cooperation shall include, but is not limited to, the following:

a. BP America and the BP Entities shall truthfully disclose all information
with respect to the activities of BP America and the BP Entities’ directors, officers, employees,
agents or consultants, concerning all matters relating to the current investigation of propane and
any other alleged Manipulative Conduct, about which BP America and the BP Entities have any
knowledge or about which the Department shall inquire. BP America and the BP Entities shall
be deemed to “have any knowledge” of alleged Manipulative Conduct when information about
such alleged Manipulative Conduct is known to a representative from any BP legal group, a
representative of a BP compliance group, or any individual responsible for the supervision of
trading managers or his or her supervisor(s). This obligation of truthful disclosure includes the

obligation of BP America and the BP Entities to provide to the Department or any agency

designated by the Department, upon request, any document, record, or other tangible evidence
f propane or such other Manipulative Conduct sbout w
the Department shall inquire of BP America and the BP Entities.

I.  The Department specifically reserves the right to request that BP

America and the BP Entities provide the Department with access to information, documents,

rd
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records, facilities and/or employees that may be subject to a valid claim of attorney-client
privilege and/or the attorney work product doctrine.

ii. If BP America or the BP Entities agree to provide the Department
or the Monitor with access 1o information, documents, records, facilities and/or employees that
may be subject o a claim of attorney-client privilege and/or attorney work product doctrine, the
Department will agree: (a) not to assert that the provision of such materials in any way
constitutes a waiver of the attorney-client privilege and/or the work product doctrine as it relates
to third parties; (b) that the production of such materials provides no ground to obtain other
documents, materials, or information, although any such grounds that exist apart from such
production remain unaffected; and (¢) to maintain the confidentiality of such materials and not to
provide them to any third party, except to the extent that disclosure is required by law, otherwise
authorized by this Agreement, or necessary in furtherance of the Department’s discharge of its
official duties and responsibilities;

iii. Upon written notice to the Department, BP America and the BP
Entities specifically reserve the right to withhold access to information, documents, records,
facilities and/or employees based upon an assertion of a valid claim of attorney-client privilege
or application of the attorney work product doctrine. Such notice shall include a general

description of the nature of the information, documents, records, facilities and/or employees that

4 .
he basis of the claim.
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iv. In the event that BP America or the BP Entities withhold access to

information, documents, records, facilities and/or employees, the Department may consider this

o
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fact in determining whether BP America or the BP Entities have fully cooperated with the
Department.
v. Except as provided in this paragraph, BP America and the BP

Entities shall not withhold from the Department any information, documents, records, facilities
and/or employees on the basis of an attorney-client privilege or work product claim

b. Upon request of the Department, with respect to any issue relevant to its
current investigation of propane or such other Manipulative Conduct about which the
Department shall inquire of BP America and the BP Entities, BP America and the BP Entitics
shall designate knowledgeable employees, agents, or attorneys to provide to the Department the
information and materials described in Paragraph 4(a) above, on behalf of BP America and th
BP Entities. It is further understood that BP America and the BP Entities must at all times
provide complete, truthful, and accurate information.

c. With respect to any issue relevant to the Department’s current
investigation of propane or such other Manipulative Conduct about which the Department shall
inquire of BP America and the BP Entities, BP America and the BP Entities shall use reasonable

cfforts to make available for interviews or testimony, as requested by the Department or the

CFTC, current or former directors, officers, employees, agents and consultants of BP America

or any of its current or former subsidiaries, affiliates, or its parent company. This undertaking
1 federal trials, as

well as interviews with federal law enforcement authorities, the CFTC, and any other agency

designated by the Department for any civil or criminal investigative purposes. This undertak ing

h
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also includes identification of witnesses who, to the knowledge of BP America, may have
d. With respect to any information, testimony, document, record, or other
tangible evidence provided to the Department or the CFTC pursuant to this Agreement, BP
America and the BP Entities consent to any and all disclosures to other government agencies,
whether agencies of the United States or a foreign government, as the Department and the CFTC
shall deem appropriate. Prior to providing any such information, the Department will seek
reasonable assurances from the agency that it will abide by the terms of this Agreement and keep
the information confidential except as may be necessary to discharge its official duties.

5. In return for the full and truthful cooperation of BP America and the BP Entities,
and compliance with all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Department agrees not to
use any information related to the conduct described in the attached Statement of Facts against BP
America, the BP Entities, or any of their parent or affiliated entities in any criminal or civil case,
except in a prosecution for perjury or obstruction of justice occurring after the date of this
Agreement; in a prosecution for making a false statement after the date of this Agreement; in a
prosecution or other proceeding relating to any crime of violence; or in a prosecution or other

proceeding relating to tax enforcement. This does not preclude the Department or any

-

government entity from using information contained in the attached Statement of Facts in a
prosecution for crimes unrelated to the conduct described therein.

6. In addition, the Department agrees that except in the event of a violation by BP
America of any term of this Agreement, the Department will bring no additional charges against

BP America, the BP Entities, or any of their parent or affiliated entities relating to: (a) the events
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or transactions described in the attached Statement of Facts; (b) the events or transactions relating

to West Texas Intermediate crude oil trading from 1999 to 2005 by any BP America subsidiary,

N

including the storage of supply in Cushing, Oklahoma and at TEPPCO and trading activities a
they relate to Platts assessments; and (c) the events or transactions relating to the trading activity
and price reporting of ethane and ethylene in April 2003 by any BP America subsidiary. This
Paragraph does not provide any protection against prosecution for any illegal activities, if any,
committed in the future by BP America or the BP Entities, nor does it apply to any illegal conduct
that may have occurred in the past, which are not described in the attached Statement of Facts. In
addition, this Paragraph does not provide any protection against criminal prosecution of any
present or former director, officer, employee, agent or consultant of BP America or the BP
Entities for any violations committed by them.

Monetarv Penalty

7. BP America agrees to pay a monetary penalty of $100,000,000 made payable to
the U.S. Treasury within five (5) business days after acceptance of this Agreement by the Court.
This amount is a final payment and shall not be refunded (a) if the Department moves to dismiss
the Information pursuant to this Agreement, or (b) should the Department later determine that BP

America has breached this Agreement and brings a prosecution against it. Further, nothing in

this Agreement shall be deemed an agreement by the Department that this amount is the

.

maximum criminal fine that may be imposed in any such prosecutio d the Department shall
not be preciuded in such a prosecution from arguing that the Court should impose a higher fine

The Department agrees, however, that in the event of a subsequent breach and prosecution, it

wiil recommend to the Court that the amount paid pursuant to this Agreement should be offset
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against whatever fine the Court shall impose as part of its judgment. BP America acknov ledges
that no tax deduction may be sought in connection with the payment of this $100,000,000
penaity.
8. The parties have agreed that the fine of $100,000,000 for defendant BP America

is appropriate based upon the following factors:

a. By entering and fulfilling the obligations uhc’;er this Agreement, defendant
BP America has demonstrated recognition and affirmative acceptance of responsibility for its
criminal conduct and agreed to continue its cooperation with the Department; and

b. By entering into a deferred prosecution agreement with the Department,
the defendant has, among other things, agreed to engage a monitor.

Victim Restitution

9. The parties agree that BP America will pay a total of $53,503,000 into a fund
established for victim restitution (the “Restitution Fund”), including for possible settlement of any
pending claims asserted in class action lawsuits brought by direct purchasers or indirect
purchasers of February 2004 TET propane. The payment of this money into the Restitution Fund

shall not constitute an adjudication of any individual claim presently asserted or asserted in the

future by any victim.

10, Victims eligible to submit claims for payment from the Restitution Fund include
persons and entities that meet all three of the following criteria:
a. purchased physical barrels of propane from February 12, 2004 through

March 2, 2004;

o0
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b. purchased physical barrels of propane from an entity identified as a Prime
Supplier by the U.S. Energy Information Administration (“EIA”); and

C. purchased propane transported by the Texas Eastern Products Pipeline
Co., LLC (“TEPPCO”) system or another pipeline system in one of the following states:
Alabama, Arkansas, Connecticut, Delaware, District of Columbia, Florida, Georgia, llmots,
[ndiana, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, Mississippi, New Hampshire,
New Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, South Carolina,
Tennessee, Texas, Vermont, Virginia, and West Virginia.

11 Any entity listed on the EIA Prime Supplier Exclusionary List, EIA Form-782C,

in February 2004 is excluded from submitting a claim for restitution to the Restitution Fund.

12

The exclusion of any potential victims from the class of victims eligible to be
reimbursed through the Restitution Fund shall not be construed to confirm or deny potential
liability for those victims.

13. BP America agrees to retain and to compensate an individual or entity to
administer the distribution of the proceeds of the Restitution Fund (hereinafter referred to as the
“Third Party Administrator” or “Administrator”). The Third Party Administrator shall be selected

by BP America and approved by the Department. Within 30 days of the date of execution of this

Agreement, BP America will submit to the Department a proposal setting forth the identity and
terms of retention and compensation of the Third Party Administrator. The Department will

approve or disapprove the proposed Third Party Administrator within 15 days of its receipt of a

proposal. If the Department disapproves of the proposed Third Party Administrator, BP America

will, within 30 days of receipt of notice of such disapproval, submit a revised proposal, which the

Ny
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Department will approve or disapprove within 15 days. The procedure set forth in this paragraph
will continue, as necessary, until such time as the Department approves a proposed Third Party
Administrator.

14, Within six (6) months of the retention of the Third Party Administrator, the
Administrator will prepare and submit to the Department a plan (the “Restitution Plan”) setting forth
the procedures governing the activities of the Third Party Administrator, including but not limited
(a) the procedures by which victims eligible to seek reimbursement from the Restitution Fund will be
identified; and (b) the procedures by which the financial losses of such victims will be determined and
restitution for such losses will be paid. In connection with the preparation of the Restitution Plan, BP
America and the BP Entities shall assist and cooperate with the Third Party Administrator. Because
the restitution paid pursuant to this Agreement is not ordered as part of a judgment of conviction, the
provisions of 18 U.S.C. §§ 3663A et seq. are inapplicable. The Restitution Plan must be approved by
the Department and the Court. The Department will approve or disapprove the Restitution Plan within
30 days of its receipt. If the Department disapproves the proposed plan, the Third Party
Administrator will, within 30 days of receipt of notice of such disapproval, submit a revised plan,
which the Department will approve or disapprove within 30 days. This process will continue, as
necessary, until a plan is approved by the Department. Upon approval of the Restitution Plan by the

Department, the Department and BP America will jointly submit the approved Restitution Plan to the

Court for its approval. If the Court rejects the approved Restitution Plan, the procedure set forth in
this paragraph will be repeated until such time as the Court approves a Restitution Plan. An extension
of time may be granted by the Department upon request.

15. Within twelve (12) months of the retention of the Third Party Administrator, the

53\

Administrator will prepare and submit to the Department a distribution plan (the “Distribution Pla:

LAY

iy
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setting forth the manner for distributing the restitution funds. The Distribution Plan shall outline all
material issues that exist regarding the proposed distribution. The Distribution Plan must be approved
by the Department and the Court. The Department will approve or disapprove the Distribution Plan
within 45 days of irs receipt. If the Department disapproves the proposed plan, the Third Party
Administrator will, within 30 days of receipt of notice of such disapproval, submit a revised plan,
which the Department will approve or disapprove within 30 days. This process will continue, as
necessary, until a plan is approved by the Department. Upon the approval of the Distribution Plan,
the Department and BP America will jointly submit the approved Distribution Plan to the Court for its
approval. If the Court rejects the approved Distribution Plan, the procedure set forth in this paragraph
will be repeated until such time as the Court approves a Distribution Plan.

16. The Third Party Administrator shall not report to BP America or any of its direct
or indirect affiliates, subsidiaries, or parent corporations.

17. Within fourteen (14) days of appointment, the Third Party Administrator shall
open an interest-bearing bank account in order to receive monies to be paid by BP America under
the Agreement. All proceeds deposited shall be held in the form of cash, cash equivalents, or a
similarly safe financial instrument. All interest and other income of any type eamed on funds

held in the account shall be available for distribution by the Third Party Administrator.

Immediately after opening the account, the Third Party Administrator shall notify BP America of
such opening and shall provide BP America with all bank account information necessary to
enable and facilitate the funding of the bank account.

i8. BP America agrees that the $53,503,000 for the Restitution Fund shall be paid as
a lump sum within five (5) business days after receiving the bank account information from the

Third Party Administrator.

11
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19. None of the proceeds of the fund shall be payable as attorney’s fees. All costs of
administering the Restitution Fund, including all costs associated with the retention and actions of
the Third Party Administrator, are to be born by BP America.

20. Within sixty (60) calendar days after the appointment of the Third Party
Administrator, BP America shall provide notice to potential victims by, at least:

a Providing written notification of the existence of the Restitution Fund,
subject to the review of the Department, to all direct counterparties that purchased TET propane,
including contracts for physical propane and financially settled contracts, from February 12,
2004 through March 2, 2004, from BP America or any of its direct or indirect affiliates,
subsidiaries, or parent corporations; and
b. Providing public notice of the existence of the Restitution Fund, subject to
the review of the Department, in a nationally distributed newspaper.
21. To the extent that any money in the Restitution Fund is not claimed by victims
within two (2) years of the appointment of the Third Party Administrator, the remaining amount
may, at the discretion of the Third Party Administrator, be transferred to a fund for other potential

classes of victims affected by the conduct described in the attached Statement of Facts. If after

three (3) years of the appointment of the Third Party Administrator, the remaining amount shall

revert to the United States Treasury, unless an extension is granted by the Department.

Other Paviment

22. In addiuon to the above, the parties further agree that BP America will pay

525,000,000 to the United States Postal Inspection Service Consumer Fraud Fund. BP America
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agrees that this amount shall be paid as a lump sum within five (5) business days after acceptance
of this Agreement by the Court.

Independent Monitor

23. Under the terms and conditions set forth in Attachment B, which is incorporated
by reference herein, BP America and the BP Entities agree to oversight and monitoring by an
independent monitor (“Monitor”). BP America, the CFTC, and the Department shall use mutual
best efforts to identify a mutually acceptable person, who, subject to the approval of the Court,
shall serve as the Monitor.

Deferral of Prosecution

24, In consideration of BP America’s entry into this Agreement and BP America’s:
(a) cooperation with the Department and the CFTC in their investigations of this matter; (b)
acceptance and acknowledgment of responsibility for its conduct; (c) agreement to take voluntary
remedial actions, including its engagement of an outside consulting firm to evaluate BP’s trading
compliance programs and to adopt recommended measures; (d) engagement of an independent
monitor pursuant to this Agreement; (e) agreement to continue to cooperate with the Department
and the CFTC in their investigations; and (f) compliance with all of the terms of this Agreement,

the Department shall recommend to the Court that prosecution of BP America on the Information

be deferred for a period of three (3) years from the date of entry of this Agreement, subject to

extensions as described in Paragraph 29 herein
25, If the Department determines, in its sole discretion, that BP America is in

compliance with all of its obligations under this Agreement, including its obligation to adopt the

recommendations of the Monitor, in accordance with the terms of Attachment B, at the expiration



Case: 1:07-cr-00683 Document #: 6 Filed: 10/30/07 Page 14 of 29 PagelD #:23

of the period of deferral (including any extensions thereof), the Department will not continue a
criminal prosecution against BP America and the BP Entities, will move to dismiss the
Information, and this Agreement shall expire.

26. BP America and the Department understand that the Agreement to defer
prosecution of BP America must be approved by the Court, in accordance with 18 US.C. §

3161(h)(2). Should the Court decline to approve the Agreement to defer prosecution for any

reason, both BP America and the Department are released from all obligations imposed upon
them by this Agreement except that BP America agrees not to object to the dismissal of the
Information and the filing of any superseding charging documents.

27. Should the Department determine in its sole discretion that BP America or the BP
Entities committed a willful and knowing material breach of any provision of this Agreement, the
Department shall provide written notice to BP America of the alleged breach and provide BP
America a two-week period within which to request a meeting to make a presentation to the
Department to demonstrate that no material breach has occurred, or, to the extent applicable, that
the breach is not a willful and knowing material breach or has been cured. The parties hereto

expressly understand and agree that should BP America fail to request such a presentation within

a two-week period, the Department in its sole discretion may presume that BP America or the BP

Entities willfully and knowingly materially breached this Agreement.

28. It is further understood that should the Department in its sole discretion determine
that BP America has committed any federal crime involving Manipulative Conduct other than a
misdemeanor violation, knowingly given false, incomplete or misleading information relating to

the current investigation of propane or such other Manipulative Conduct about which the
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Department shall inquire of BP America and the BP Entities, or have otherwise knowingly
violated any provision of this Agreement, BP America shall, in the Department’s sole discretion,
thereafter be subject to prosecution for any federal criminal violation of which the Department
has knowledge, including but not limited to a prosecution based on the Information or the conduct

described therein. Any such prosecution may be premised on any information provided by or on
behalf of BP America or the BP Entities to the Department or the CFTC at any time. Any such
prosecutions that are not time-barred by the applicable statute of limitations on the date of this
Agreement may be commenced against BP America within the applicable period governing the
statute of limitations. In addition, BP America agrees to toll, and exclude from any calculations
of time, the running of the criminal statute of limitations for a period of three (3) years from the
date of the execution of this Agreement (with two additional extensions of the tolling agreement,
as necessary, to be co-extensive with the term of the independent monitor) for any crimes
encompassed in the attached Statement of Facts. By this Agreement, BP America expressly
intends to and hereby does waive its rights in the foregoing respects, including any right to make
a claim premised on the statute of limitations, as well as any constitutional, statutory, or other
claim concerning pre-indictment delay. Such waivers are knowing and voluntary.

29. BP America agrees that, in the event that the Department determines, in its sole

discretion, that BP America has knowingly violated any provision of this Agreement, a one-year
extension of the period of deferral of prosecution may be imposed by the Department, and, in the
event of additional violations, such additional one-year extensions as appropriate, but in no event

shall the total term of the deferral of prosecution period of this Agreement exceed five (5) years.

HM
L
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Any extension of the deferred prosecution period extends all terms of this Agreement for an

equivalent period.

30. It is further agreed that in the event that the Department, in its sole discretion,
determines that BP America or the BP Entities have knowingly violated any provision of this
Agreement: (a) all statements made by or on behalf of BP America or the BP Entities to the
Department, including the attached Statement of Facts, and any testimony given by BP America
or the BP Entities before a grand jury or any tribunal, at any legislative hearings, or to the CFTC,
whether prior or subsequent to this Agreement, or any leads derived from such statements or
testimony, shall be admissible in evidence in any and all criminal proceedings brought by the
Department against BP America or the BP Entities; and (b) BP America and the BP Entities shall
not assert any claim under the United States Constitution, Rule 11(f) of the Federal Rules of
Criminal Procedure, Rule 410 of the Federal Rules of Evidence, or any other federal rule, that
statements made by or on behalf of BP America or the BP Entities prior or subsequent to this
Agreement, or any leads therefrom, should be suppressed. The decision whether conduct or
statements of any individual will be imputed to BP America or the BP Entities for the purpose of
determining whether BP America or the BP Entities have knowingly violated any provision of

this Agreement shall be in the sole discretion of the Department.

31. BP America and the BP Entities acknowledge that the Department has made no
representations, assurances, or promises concerning what sentence may be imposed by the Court

should BP America or the BP Entities breach this Agreement and this matter proceed to

judgment. BP America and the BP Entities further acknowledge that any such sentence is solely
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within the discretion of the Court and that nothing in this Agreement binds or restricts the Court
in the exercise of such discretion.

32 BP America and the BP Entities agree that in the event they sell, merge, or
transfer all or substantially all of their business operations or any part of the trading operations as
they exist as of the date of this Agreement, whether such sale(s) is/are structured as a siock or
asset sale, merger, or transfer, they shall include in any contract for sale, merger or transfer a
provision binding the purchaser(s) or any successor(s) in interest thereto to the obligations
described in this Agreement.

33. BP America further agrees that during the three (3) vear period of this Agreement
(or any extensions thereof), the Company will refrain from entering into any contract, agreement,
or reorganization that divests the U.S. Compliance and Ethics group of its authority to implement
compliance rules and regulations for trading operations in North America, without prior approval
from the Department.

34. BP America and the BP Entities expressly agree that they shall not, through their
present or future attorneys, directors, officers, or any other person authorized to speak for BP
America or the BP Entities, make any public statement, in litigation or otherwise, contradicting

the acceptance of responsibility by BP America and the BP Entities set forth above or the factual

statements set forth in the Statement of Facts. Any such contradictory statement shall, subject to
cure rights below by BP America and the BP Entities, constitute a breach of this Agreement and
BP America and the BP Entities thercafter shall be subject to prosecution as set forth in

Paragraphs 28 through 30 of this Agreement. It shall be within the Department’s sole discretion

and decision whether any public statement by any such person contradicting a fact contained in
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the Statement of Facts will be imputed to BP America and the BP Entities for the purpose of
determining whether they have breached this Agreement. Should the Department determine that
a public statement by any such person materially contradicts in whole or in part a statement

1

contained in the Statement of Facts, the Department shall so notify BP America or the BP
Entities. Thereafter, BP America or the BP Entities may avoid a breach of this Agreement by
publicly repudiating such statement within two (2) business days after notification. Consistent
with the obligations of BP America and the BP Entities as set forth above, BP America and the
BP Entities shall be permitted fo raise defenses and to assert affirmative claims and defenses in
any other separate civil and regulatory proceedings that relate to the matters set forth in the
Statement of Facts. This Paragraph is not intended to apply to any statement made by any former
employee of BP America or the BP Entities in the course of any criminal, regulatory, or civil case
initiated against any such individual.

35. hould BP America or the BP Entities issue a press release in connection with this
Agreement or the ongoing civil and criminal investigations of propane, BP America or the BP
Entities shall provide the text of the press release to the Department twenty-four hours before its
public release.

36. It is understood that this Agreement is binding on BP America and the BP Entities

and the Department but specifically does not bind any other federal, state or local law
enforcement or regulatory agencies, although the Department will bring the cooperation of BP
America and the BP Entities and their compliance with their other obligations under this
Agreement to the attention of such agencies and authorities if requested to do so by BP America

or the BP Entities and their attorneys.
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37. This Agreement sets forth all the terms of the Deferred Prosecution Agreement
between BP America and the BP Entities and the Department. No modifications or additions o
this Agreement shall be valid unless they are in writing and signed by the Department, the
attorneys for BP America and the BP Entities, and a duly authorized representative of BP

America and the BP Entities.

RS =%0)
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38.  Any notice to BP America or the BP Entities under this Agreement shall be

e

by personal delivery, overnight delivery by a recognized delivery service or registered or certified
mail, in each case addressed to Stephen R. Winters, Associate Group General Counsel, BP
America Inc., 200 West Lake Park Blvd., Houston, TX 77079. Notice shall be effective upon

actual receipt by BP America.

19
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AGREED:

FOR DEFENDANT BP AMERICA INC:

FOR BP CORPORATION
NORTH AMERICA INC.:

FOR BP PRODUCTS
NORTH AMERICA INC.:

FOR BP AMERICA
PRODUCTION COMPANY:

FOR BP ENERGY COMPANY:

FOR BP INTERNATIONAL
SERVICES COMPANY:

N VE

Counsel for Defendant BP America Inc.

Counsel for BP Corporation North America

Inc.

Counsel for BP Products North America Inc.

e R1L

Counsel for BP America Production
Company

A LB

Counsel for BP Energy Company

Counsel for BP Internarional Services
Company
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FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

By:

R

STEVEN A. TYRRELL
Chief, Fraud Section

:'/ "
,,,,,,, R ‘
\3, 3
-
~ 4

S A A Lo

PAULE. PELLETIER
Principal Deputy Chief, Fraud Section

FI

g

i IS

JERROB DUFE
{giz{i Attorney, Fraud Section

g,

STACEY LUCK
Trial Attorney, Fraud Section

United States Department of Justice
Criminal Division, Fraud Section
10" & Constitution Avenue, NW
Washington, D.C. 20530

(202) 514-0819

Filed at Chicago, Illinois, on this ___ day of October, 2007.

b
ot
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CERTIFICATE OF CORPORATE RESOLUTIONS

WHEREAS, BP AMERICA INC. (*"BP AMERICA” or the “Company”) has been
cngaged in discussions with the United States Department of Justice in connection with issues in

[92 95248
&

relation to certain manipulative conduct arising from the trading of TET propane in 2003 and
2004 and

WHEREAS, in order to resolve such discussions, it is proposed that the Company enter
into a deferred prosecution agreement with the United States Department of Justice; and

WHEREAS counsel for the Company have advised the Board of Directors of the
Company’s rights, possible defenses, the Organizational Sentencing Guidelines’ provisions, and
the consequences of entering into such agreement with the United States Department of Justice;

Therefore, this Board hereby RESOLVES that:

1. The Company (i) consents to the filing in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Illinois of an Information charging BP AMERICA with conspiring to
commit offenses against the United States, that is, to violate the Commodity Exchange Act
("CEA™). 7 U.S.C. § 13(a)(2), 18 US.C. § 1341 (mail fraud), and 18 U.S.C. § 1343 (wire fraud),
all in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371, and (ii) waives indictment on such charges and enters intc a
Deferred Prosecution Agreement with the United States Department of Justice.

2. Counsel for the Company, or his delegate, are hereby authorized, empowered and
directed, on behalf of the Company, to execute the Deferred Prosecution Agreement substantially
in such form as reviewed by this Board of Directors at this meeting with such changes as the

General Counsel, or his delegate, may approve;

3. Counsel for the Company, or his delegate, the President or his delegate, and any
Vice President are hereby each individually authorized, empowered and directed to take any and
all actions as may be necessary or appropriate, and to approve the forms, terms or provisions of
any agreement or other documents as may be necessary or appropriate to cairy out and effectuate
the purpose and intent of the foregoing resolutions; and

4 All of the actions of the counsel for.the f‘(\z‘n;’\c;nv) which actions would have been

authorized by the foregoing resolutions except that such actions were taken prior to the adoption
of such resolutions, are hereby severally ratified, confirmed, approved and adopted as actions on

behalf of the company.

. '*,/\q‘ ! / P
. L ey s / 7 4 Y/ -—
Date B GORr T;Z / ,f/ w4 A el g
' Paula J. Clayton v

Corporate Secretary
BP America Inc.



Case: 1:07-cr-00683 Document #: 6 Filed: 10/30/07 Page 23 of 29 PagelD #:32

OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE

I have read this Agreement and carefully reviewed every part of it with counsel for BP

»

America Inc. ("BP America”). [ understand the terms of this Agreement and voluntarily agree,
on behalf of BP America, to each of its terms. Before signing this Agreement, [ consulted with
counsel for BP America. Counsel fully advised me of BP America’s rights, of possible defenses,
of the Sentencing Guidelines’ provisions, and of the consequences of entering into this
Agreement. This Agreement has been reviewed by the Board of Directors of BP America, which
has been advised of its rights, of possible defenses, of the Sentencing Guidelines® provisions, and
of the consequences of entering into the Agreement.

No promises or inducements have been made other than those contained in this
Agreement. Furthermore, no one has threatened or forced me, or to my knowledge any person
authorizing this Agreement on behalf of BP America, in any way to enter into this Agreement. |
am also satisfied with counsel’s representation in this matfer. I certify that I am an officer of BP

America and that I have been duly authorized by the Board of Directors of BP America 10

execute this Agreement on behalf of BP America.

Date:_1 U f/ ([0 BP AMERICA INC.
‘ NS

Paul Reed
Vice President
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL
[ am counsel for BP America Inc. ("BP America”) in the matter covered by this
Agreement. In connection with such representation, I have examined relevant BP America
documents and have discussed this Agreement with the Board of Directors and authorized
representative of BP America. Based on my review of the foregoing materials and discussions, |

zm of the opinion that: BP America’s representative has been duly authorized to enter into this

Agreement by its Board of Directors on behalf of BP America. This Agreement has been duly

5]

ind validly authorized, executed, and delivered on behalf of BP America and is a valid and
binding obligation of BP America. Further, I have carefully reviewed this Agreement with the
Board of Directors and General Counsel of BP America. [ have fully advised them of BP
America’s rights, of possible defenses, of the Sentencing Guidelines’ provisions, and of the
consequences of entering into this Agreement. To my knowledge, BP America’s decision to

enter into this Agreement is an informed and voluntary one.

w

ate: fj{} a? if {}i?z

STEVEN R. PEIKIN
Sullivan & Cromwell LLP
125 Broad Street

New York, NY 10004-2498

Counsel for BP AMERICA INC
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OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE

I have read this Agreement and carefully reviewed every part of it with counsel for BP
Corporation North America Inc. (“BP Corporation™). I understand the terms of this Agreement,
and voluntarily agree on behalf of BP Corporation, to each of its terms. Before signing this
Agreement, I consulted with counsel for BP Corporation.  Counsel fully advised me of BP
Corparation’s rights and of the consequences of entering into this Agreement, This Agreement
has been reviewed by the Board of Directors of BP Corporation, which has been advised of its
rights and the consequences of entering into the Agreement,

No promises or inducements have been made other than those contained in this
Agreement. Furthermore, no one has threatened or forced me, or to my knowledge any person
authorizing this Agreement on behalf of BP Corporation, in any way to enter into this
Agreement. [ am also satisfied with the counsel’s representation in this matter. I certify that [
am an officer of BP Corporation and that [ have been duly authorized by the Board of Directors

of BP Corporation to execute this Agreement on behalf of BP Corporation.

] / o
Date:_1C [ 2407 BP CORPORATION NORTH AMERICA INC.

; e

N

Paul Reed

Vice President
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OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE
I'have read this Agreement and carefully reviewed every part of it with counsel for BP
Products North America Ine. (“BP Products™). I understand the terms of this Agreement, and
voluntarily agree on behalf of BP Products, to each of its terms. Before signing this Agreement,

I consulted with counsel for BP Products. Counsel fully advised me of BP Products’ rights an

[

of the consequences of entering into this Agreement. This Agreement has been reviewed by the
Board of Directors of BP Corporation, which has been advised of its rights and the consequences
of entering into the Agreement.

No promises or inducements have been made other than those contained in this
Agreement. Furthermore, no one has threatened or forced me, or to my knowledge any person
authorizing this Agreement on behalf of BP Products, in any way to enter into this Agreement. [
am also satisfied with the counsel’s representation in this matter, I certify that I am an officer of
BP Products and that I have been duly authorized by the Board of Directors of BP Products to

execute this Agreement on behalf of BP Products.

Date: 1O EZ-L; L0 BP PRODUCTS NORTH AMERICA INC.

4 !

By: AL\
Paul Reed
Vice President
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OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE

America Production Company (“BP America Production™). [ understand the terms of this
Agreement, and voluntarily agree on behalf of BP America Production, to each of its terms.
Betore signing this Agreement, 1 consulted with counsel for BP America Production. Counsel
fully advised me of BP America Production’s rights and of the consequences of entering into this
Agreement. This Agreement has been reviewed by the Board of Directors of BP Corporation,
which has been advised of its rights and the consequences of entering into the Agreement.

No promises or inducements have been made other than those contained in this
Agreement. Furthermore, no one has threatened or forced me, or 1o my knowledge any person
authorizing this Agreement on behalf of BP America Production, in any way to enter into this
Agreement. I am also satisfied with the counsel’s representation in this matter. B certify that [
am an officer of BP America Production and that I have been duly authorized by the Board of

Directors of BP America Production to execute this Agreement on behalf of BP America

Production.
Date:__10 {2 4 (07 BP AMERICA PRODUCTION COMPANY
N . 4 a.;(:\‘{
By: (SR

Paul Reed
Vice President
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OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE

I have read this Agreement and carefully reviewed every part of it with counse! for BP
[nternational Services Company (“BP [nternational”). T understand the terms of this Agreement,
and voluntarily agree on behalf of BP International, to each of its terms. Before signing this
Agreement, [ consulted with the counsel for BP International. Counsel fully advised me of BP
International’s rights and of the consequences of entering into this Agreement. This Agreement
has been reviewed by the Board of Directors of BP Corporation, which has been advised of its
rights and the consequences of entering into the Agreement.

No promises or inducements have been made other than those contained in this
Agreemeﬁt. Furthermore, no one has threatened or forced me, or to my knowledge any person
authorizing this Agreement on bchalf of BP [nternational, in any way to enter into this
Agreement. [ am also satisfied with the counsel’s representation in this matter. I certify that [

am an officer of BP International and that [ have been duly authorized by the Board of Directors

of BP International to execute this Agreement on behalf of BP International.

2T

v 7 BP INTERNATIONAL SERVICES COMPANY

]
By: ¢ :’ e

\amesDietz \

ol
Date: fﬁf*“f/

Vice President N
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OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE
I 'have read this Agreement and carefully reviewed every part of it with counsel for BP

Energy Company ("BP Energy™. [ understand the terms of this Agreement, and voluntarily
agree on behalf of BP Energy, to each of its terms. Before signing this Agreement, I consulted
with the counsel for BP Energy. Counsel fully advised me of BP Energy’s rights and of the
consequences of entering into this Agreement. This Agreement has been reviewed by the Board
of Directors of BP Corporation, which has been advised of its rights and the consequences of
entering into the Agreement,

No promises or inducements have been made other than those contained in this
Agreement. Furthermore, no one has threatened or forced me, or to my knowledge any person
authorizing this Agreement on behalf of BP Energy, in any way to enter into this Agreement. |

am also satisfied with the counsel’s representation in this matter. I certify that I am an officer of

1

BP Energy and that I have been duly authorized by the Board of Directors of BP Energy to

v

gq

execute this Agreement on behalf of BP Energy.

I
i

! "3 vy T o ¥ N " vy 7
Date: 1L 24 O 4 BP ENERGY COMPANY
7 T
/ 5
> / Pz \\
%i/"\ :/j\,; ’ft/\x«:
AL TTVARY -
By e\ Ny
Paul Reed
Vice President

o



